ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 31, 2008
1:42 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

Senator Gene Therriaul t

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 65(FIN)

"An Act relating to breaches of security involving personal
information, credit report and credit score security freezes,
protection of social security nunbers, care of records, disposal
of records, identity theft, credit cards, and debit cards, and
to the jurisdiction of the office of admnistrative hearings;
anmending Rules 60 and 82, Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure; and
providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 88(FIN)
"An Act relating to televisions, nonitors, portable conputers,
and simlar devices in notor vehicles; relating to the
definition of physical injury for the Alaska Uniform Vehicle
Code; and providing for an effective date.™

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 65

SHORT TI TLE: PERSONAL | NFORVATI ON & CONSUMER CREDI T
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL, GARA

01/ 16/ 07 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H) L&C, JUD, FIN

01/ 31/ 07 (H) L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 31/ 07 (H <Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2008



03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
04/ 04/ 07
04/ 04/ 07
04/ 16/ 07
04/ 16/ 07
04/ 20/ 07
04/ 20/ 07
04/ 20/ 07
04/ 23/ 07
04/ 23/ 07
04/ 23/ 07
04/ 24/ 07
04/ 24/ 07
04/ 24/ 07
04/ 24/ 07
05/ 02/ 07
05/ 02/ 07
05/ 02/ 07
05/ 05/ 07
05/ 05/ 07
05/ 05/ 07
05/ 07/ 07
05/ 07/ 07
05/ 07/ 07
01/ 23/ 08
01/ 23/ 08
01/ 23/ 08
02/ 13/ 08
02/ 13/ 08
02/ 13/ 08
02/ 18/ 08
02/ 18/ 08
02/ 18/ 08
02/ 19/ 08
02/ 19/ 08
02/ 19/ 08
02/ 21/ 08
02/ 21/ 08
02/ 21/ 08

02/ 27/ 08
02/ 27/ 08
02/ 29/ 08
02/ 29/ 08
03/ 04/ 08

SENATE JUD COW TTEE

LRI TIIITITIIIITIIIIIIZIIIIIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZI IS

NN AN NN

L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( L&C)

L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

<Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>

L&C AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 17

Schedul ed But Not Heard

L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( L&C)

L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

Moved CSHB 65(L&C) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( L&C)

L& RPT CS(L&C) 2DP 3NR 1AM

DP: GATTO, NEUMAN

NR: BUCH, LEDOUX, OLSON

AM GARDNER

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

Moved CSHB 65(JUD) Qut of Conmmittee
M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 4DP 2AM

DP: HOLMES, LYNN, COGHI LL, RAMRAS
AM DAHLSTROM SAMUJELS

FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Moved CSHB 65(FIN) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 4DP 5NR

DP: HAWKER, CRAWFORD, GARA, NELSON

NR: KELLY, THOVAS, STOLTZE, MVEYER

CHENAULT

TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON:  CSHB 65( FI N)

READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
L&C, JUD, FIN

L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

-2- March 31,



03/ 04/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 04/ 08 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/13/08 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 13/ 08 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 15/ 08 (S L&C AT 4:00 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 15/ 08 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 15/ 08 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 18/ 08 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 18/ 08 (S) Moved CSHB 65(L&C) Qut of Conmittee
03/ 18/ 08 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 19/ 08 (S L& RPT SCS 4DP SAME TI TLE
03/ 19/ 08 (S) DP: ELLIS, BUNDE, DAVIS, STEVENS
03/ 29/ 08 (S) JUD AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 29/ 08 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 29/ 08 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 31/ 08 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

KAREN LI DSTER, St af f
to Representative Coghill
Al aska State Capitol
Juneau, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned proposed amendnents to HB 65 on
behal f of the sponsor.

ED SNI FFEN, Senior Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Cvil Division

Commerci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions related to proposed
amendnents to HB 65.

JON BURTQON, Assistant Vice President

State and Governnent Rel ations

Choi cePoi nt I nc.

Al pharetta, GA

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on a proposed anendnment to HB 65.

AUDREY ROCBI NSON, Manager
State and Governnent Affairs
Reed El sevi er, parent conpany
for LexisNexis
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on a proposed anendnment to HB 65.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 31, 2008



JENNI FER FLYNN, Seni or Manager
Consuner Data Industries Association (CDIA)
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on a proposed anendnment to HB 65.

MURRAY JOHNSTON, Director

State and Governnent Affairs

Experi an

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on a proposed anendnent to HB 65.

GAIL H LLEBRAND, Attorney at Law

Consuners Uni on West Coast Ofice

San Franci sco, CA

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provi ded consuner perspective on a proposed
amendnent to HB 65.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:42:17 PM Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Huggins, Therriault, and MGCuire.
Senator Wel echowski arrived soon thereafter.

HB 65- PERSONAL | NFORVATI ON & CONSUMER CREDI T

1:42: 30 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of HB 65. Before the
committee was SCS CSHB 65(L&C). The conmittee is trying to steer
a mddle ground between gutting the bill and shutting down
business in the state of Al aska, he said. He asked the sponsor's
representative to explain the proposed anendnents.

KAREN LI DSTER, staff to Representative Coghill, said that the
anmendnents are the result of discussion in the hearing |ast
Sat ur day.

CHAIR FRENCH explained the process for considering the
anendnents and Ms. Lidster agreed.

CHAIR FRENCH noved Anendnment 1, 25-LS0311\T.3, Banister, and
obj ected for discussion purposes.

AMENDMENTI1

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO SCS CSHB 65(L&C)

Page 2, line 19, follow ng "investigation":

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2008



Del ete "or"
| nsert "and"

M5. LIDSTER explained that the change narrows the scope wth
respect to what the requirements would be if a covered person
finds there is a breach of personal information.

1:45: 08 PM

SENATOR McGUIRE said she wants to avoid a situation where a
m splaced file or sone other snmall technical breach encunbers
business by requiring constant reporting for things that aren’'t
really relevant. She suggested that a better definition for
“breach” m ght be the place to start.

1:46: 44 PM
M5. LIDSTER directed attention to page 5,6 |I|ine 23, for a
definition of breach of security.

(1) "breach of the security” nmeans unauthorized
acquisition, or reasonable belief of wunauthorized
acqui sition, of personal information that conprom ses
the security, confidentiality, or integrity of the
personal information mintained by the information
col l ector;

The definition then tal ks about types of breach - whether it is
paper -based or with a conputer device. Subsection (b) on page 2,
says that the information collector makes the disclosure w thout
unr easonabl e delay after determ ning the scope of the breach and
restoring the integrity of the information system Subsection
(c) says that after appropriate investigation, i f it's
determned that there is not a reasonable likelihood of harmto
t he consuner, then notification is not necessary. “We think that
the definition and then [subsections] (b) and (c) cover that so
it doesn’t beconme sonmething that is onerous to the businesses,
but does not I|eave the resident in a position where their
information is possibly in breach,” she said.

SENATOR McGUI RE pointed out that even if the file is m splaced,
it still requires reporting. She expressed concern with the
anendnent because it creates a situation where a paper trail is
required in every instance.

1:49: 14 PM

CHAI R FRENCH recounted his experience with the Departnment of Law
with respect to inmediately locating every one of the files in
the departnent’s possession. Wth that in mnd, he isn't sure

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2008



that a juror would penalize a conpany that believed a file had
been msplaced and didn't report a breach. It’'s a different
matter if the file is mssing 72 hours later, he said. If a file
pops after going missing for hour, no one ever knows about it
unl ess sonet hi ng bad happened, he said.

MS5. LIDSTER said that if a file with “personal information” as
defined on page 6 goes mssing, any business that mght have
that kind of information nust be accountable to make sure that
the Alaska resident is protected. A lot of harm can occur
quickly if someone’s checking account or credit cards nunbers
are accessed, she said.

1:52: 05 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI j oi ned the neeting.

SENATOR McGUI RE asked if I|aw enforcenent agencies have been
consul ted and questioned whether the Anchorage Police Departnent
woul d suddenly be overwhelmed wth consultations regarding
m ssing files.

M5. LIDSTER replied that change cane up in the commttee hearing
on Saturday. She hasn’t consulted with |aw enforcenent agencies
to find out who mght handle the calls and what inpact those
m ght have.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said that his concern with line 19 is that
| ocal agencies would be consulted. If a file went mssing from
the Wells Fargo Bank in North Pole, he’'d hate to think that only
the city police would be contacted. If a breach occurred at a
village health clinic, someone mght only consult the Village
Public Safety Oficer (VPSO. Perhaps M. Sniffen wants to
comment but the commttee mght want to consider dropping that
option, he said.

1:54: 31 PM

SENATOR McGUIRE said the commttee mght want to designate who
would be contacted so there’s no anbiguity about where the
report is made.

CHAI R FRENCH suggested that the word “relevant” should be the
tipoff.

SENATOR McGUI RE questioned how a nerchant in Anchorage would

know whether to call Ed Sniffen with the DO., the APD fraud
unit, or the FBI. She doesn’'t have that sane confort |evel and

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2008



she' d like to know who is envi si oned and under what
ci rcunst ance.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he’'d like M. Sniffen to comrent on
whet her the DOL would be likely to pass regulations to provide
that | evel of specificity if the anendnment were to pass.

1: 56: 30 PM

ED SN FFEN, Senior Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Cvil D vision,
Commercial/Fair Business Section, Departnent of Law (DQL),
surm sed that depending on the type of breach, it would be
difficult to pinpoint which agency should be notified. If the
breach is in Alaska, notifying the attorney general’s office
woul d probably satisfy any circunstance. |If the information
needed to be forwarded to another federal or |ocal agency that
could probably be done. If a breach affecting Al aska residents
occurred outside the state and the conpany was already in
consultation wth a federal agency about whether or not
disclosure is required, that too would probably satisfy the
requi renent. He expects that when a federal agency is notified,
the information will be passed along to the attorney general’s
of fice.

MR. SNI FFEN said that sophisticated conpanies would know who to
contact, but whether or not a local nerchant would know is a
trickier call. The DCOL could adopt regulations to make that
clear, but that might not help the local nerchant much. Making
it too specific would require additional reporting for folks
wor king on a broader |evel outside the state. Wien he reads the
| anguage he agrees with Senator McGuire and he also agrees wth
Senator Therriault that you don’'t want sonmeone reporting to the
VPSO. “You want to report to soneone who actually understands
what’s going on, and can make a neani ngful review of the..breach

and decide if disclosure is required.” He would not oppose
removing reference to “local” agency, but some nunicipalities
outside the state may have the authority and be well able to
nmake a conpetent review To some extent it’s a noving target and
the current |anguage is probably clear enough, he said.

2: 00: 22 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked his view on changing the “or” to “and” on
page 2, line 19.

MR. SNIFFEN replied it’s good change that will avoid the self-

policing issue that Senator Therriault raised. Requiring the
addi ti onal informal consultation wouldn't be onerous.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2008



CHAI R FRENCH asked if he would be willing to have his nanme on a
hotline posted at credit card businesses across the state.

MR. SNl FFEN suggested the attorney general’s nanme be posted.

CHAIR FRENCH renoved his objection to Amendnent 1 and asked if
there was further objection.

2:02:40 PM

SENATOR McGQUIRE said she likes the premse of the bill, but
she’ s nervous about the nmandatory reporting requirenment and that
busi nesses would have to figure it out.

CHAIR FRENCH said he could support renobving the phrase “or
| ocal” because that option may not be helpful. Notifying a
rel evant federal or state agency gets to the |evel of governnent
official that inspires nore confidence and elimnates the VPSO
issue altogether. The wunderlying issue of whether you nmnust
notify law enforcenent on the way to arriving at a decision to
not make a disclosure is a balance point that’'s worth striking,

he said. Wthout the “or” in the phrase “after an appropriate
investigation or after consultation,” many security breaches
wi |l never be disclosed.

2:05: 02 PM

SENATOR MGUI RE said that's why it's so inportant to be specific
about whom to consult. The assunption is that the person who is
contacted will have a broader know edge-base to say that this
does in fact constitute a breach.

CHAIR FRENCH said he agrees with her point, but Amendnment 1
deals with the first half of line 19 on page 2. It asks if there
must be a report to sonebody and he’'s conme to the conclusion
that there should be.

2:06: 34 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he can envision tines when it mght be
beneficial to contact a |ocal agency. For exanple, the health
and soci al services departnent has a |arge presence in Anchorage
and it gathers private information. He’'d hate to think that
contacting that agency woul d not be a consideration.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he neans you’'d consult that agency about a
br each.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2008



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  replied he wunderstands the thrust of
Senator MQuire' s question, and he can envision tines when it
m ght be beneficial to contact a | ocal agency.

CHAIR FRENCH called a point of order saying that Anendnent 1
does not determine with whom to consult; it asks whether
consultation is required.

SENATOR McQU RE said that’'s technically true, but with whom to
consult becones relevant if the anmendnent passes since it would
require the consultation. She asked Senator Therriault if this
was contenplated in the first iterations of the bill.

2:08:49 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT relayed that subsection (c) wasn't in the
previous version of the bill. He agreed with the Chair that it

| essens the sting of the disclosure provisions.

CHAIR FRENCH said he agrees that the agency issue needs sone
clarification, but he tends to favor at |I|east having the
consultation take place before deciding that disclosure isn't
necessary.

2:10: 09 PM
SENATOR MGU RE asked if M. Sniffen could give that sone
t hought overni ght.

MR. SNI FFEN agreed to do so.

SENATOR McGUIRE reiterated that she wants to make sure that it’'s
clear, so there aren’t unwitting | aw violators.

CHAIR FRENCH suggested the commttee first decide on the
amendnent. He w thdrew his objection and finding no further
objection or discussion, he announced that Anmendnent 1 is
adopted. He added that the commttee would continue to focus on
the second part of the sentence to nmake sure that people doing
business in the state aren’t confused or m sl ed.

2:12:48 PM
CHAI R FRENCH noved Anmendnent 2, 25-LS0311\T.4, Bannister, and
obj ected for discussion purposes.

AMENDMENT 2

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO SCS CSHB 65(L&C)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 31, 2008



Page 9, line 2:
Delete ", except as provided for insurers under
(g) of this section,"”

Page 9, lines 5 - 15:
Delete all material.

Rel etter the follow ng subsections accordingly.

Page 15, |ine 18:
Delete "or"

Page 15, line 26, follow ng "screening":
I nsert "; or
(11) a person for use for insurance purposes
in setting a rate, adjusting a rate, adjusting a
claim or underwiting, except that this paragraph may
not be interpreted to authorize an insurance practice

that is prohibited by other |aw'

M5. LIDSTER said the amendnent renoves subsection (g) on page 9
and inserts paragraph (11) on page 15. It would allow insurance
conpanies access to a consuner’s information for specific
pur poses when there is a security freeze. The anendnent is the
result of commttee discussion during the last hearing, she
said. The sponsor continues to believe that when a consuner
pl aces a security freeze on his or her information it should be
secured and frozen, unless the consumer specifically lifts the
freeze. This anendnment is not the sponsor’s first choice, she
sai d.

2:16:13 PM
CHAI R FRENCH read the explanation attached to the anendnent and
asked if it’s an accurate synopsis.

MS. LIDSTER said it is.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he understands that the issue of people
stealing personal information to apply for insurance isn't a
real concern. However, he’'d like M. Sniffen or Ms. Hillebrand
to wei gh in about unintended consequences.

CHAIR FRENCH asked for clarification that this does not cover
the circunstance of a person who |loses their wallet and places a
credit freeze on their information and then wants to get a quote
for the purpose of buying insurance.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- March 31, 2008



MS. LIDSTER explained that if she placed a credit freeze on her
information and then wanted to get an insurance policy, the
i nsurance conpany woul d need access to her financial information
to do a credit check. As originally drafted the insurance
conpani es would not have access, but the anendnment would allow
access for the specific purpose.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he would have to give the insurance
conpany perm ssion to access his information.

2:18:48 PM
MS. LIDSTER replied not if this anendnment is adopt ed.

CHAIR FRENCH pointed out that he would have instigated the
request by having asked for an insurance quote.

M5. LIDSTER agreed, but the anmendnent takes the question of
gi ving perm ssion out of the equation, she said.

SENATOR McGU RE asked to hear from M. Sniffen because she
recalled that a bill passed several vyears ago said that
i nsurance conpanies would not use credit scores as a means of
ascertaining rates.

2:20: 22 PM

MR. SNIFFEN said he believes there is an exenption in that
legislation to allow insurance conpanies to use «credit
information for the first two years only.

SENATOR MGQU RE said if the consunmer can lift the ban and the
consuner wants to buy the insurance she questions the need for
nore than the standard “1 give permission to |lift nmy freeze or
not.”

M5. LIDSTER said it's a policy choice for the commttee.

CHAIR FRENCH characterized the provision as a concession to
i ndustry.

MS. LIDSTER agr eed.

2:22:46 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT commented that Senator MQ@uire being under
the inpression that industry is no longer allowed to use credit
scores is an indication of what happened to that bill. “It got
ni bbled to death.” Regardless of what |egislators thought they

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 31, 2008



did, insurance conpanies can, for the first two years, use
credit scores to quote a rate to buy insurance in Al aska. After
two years, the insurance conpany presumably knows your history
so it’s no longer necessary to have access to your credit score.
That’s why we need to be careful that we're not creating a
bi gger | oophole than we think, he said. He suggested the
commttee ask M. Sniffen to weigh in.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Sniffen what danger proposed Anmendnent 2
presents.

MR. SNIFFEN said it’'s entirely a policy call, but he's not aware
of any harm that has conme to Al askans from insurance agents
having access to this information. He understands that a |ot of
other states allow these kinds of exenptions so he assunes that
the debate has taken place el sewhere and it’'s fallen on the side
of allowing the exenption. Nonetheless, from the consuner
perspective it’'s another |oophole that perhaps should be
avoi ded, he said.

2:26:10 PM

CHAIR FRENCH cited the hypothetical exanple of applying for new
car insurance after having placed a freeze on his credit because
of a lost wallet. He questioned whether the insurance conpany
woul dn't tell himhe nmust |ift the freeze if he wants a quote.

MR. SNI FFEN agreed that would |ikely happen.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he would need to lift the freeze for al
purposes or just to conplete that particular transaction.

MR. SNI FFEN replied he believes the freeze could be lifted for a
period of tinme, but he isn't sure about Ilifting it for a
specific transaction. There are ways to do it, but the process
may be tine consum ng and carry associ ated fees, he added.

2:28: 05 PM
CHAI R FRENCH commented that the anendnent doesn’'t seem to have a
| ot of danger for either side.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI expressed the sanme sentinment He asked M.
Sniffen what the real danger is in passing the anmendnent.

CHAI R FRENCH rel ayed that he heard M. Sniffen say that the nore
| oophol es there are, the worse off you are.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 31, 2008



MR. SNIFFEN said that in the greater schene, he doesn't see a
| ot of danger. He hasn’'t heard of anyone using the insurance
exenption in other states for illegal purposes. But, he said, it
i s anot her exenption.

SENATOR MGU RE comented that she’'s conme full <circle and
believes the anendnent is consuner friendly. She questioned
whet her there’'s been any discussion about renoving security
freezes that are less blanket and nore targeted toward specific
aut hori zed pur poses.

2:31:34 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked Ms. Lidster to comment on page 8,
Sec. 45.48.130, dealing with access and actions during a security
freeze.

M5. LIDSTER relayed that the sponsor found that consunmers can
not |ift a security freeze for particular parts of their
information. If that were allowed, consuners could manipulate
their credit rating by “thawing” only the good information.
“When you freeze it, you freeze it all; when you lift it, the
freeze conmes off of everything,” she said.

SENATOR McGUIRE clarified her point was that the report in its
entirety would be available to a specific authorized person and
for a specified function. There's value to that, she said.

2:33:24 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS described the anmendnent as good and narrow
banded. It is an exception, but it’s one of those things that’'s
mandat ory, he said

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked Ms. Hillebrand to coment on whether
ot her states have had problems with simlar exceptions.

2:34:42 PM

GAIL H LLEBRAND, Attorney at Law, Consuners Union Wst Coast
Ofice, said the anendnent creates a |oophole, but it doesn't
underm ne the basic purpose of the freeze. She pointed out that
the security provisions allow consuners to lift a freeze for 15
mnutes. It’s not that inconvenient. In nost other states where
i nsurance has been exenpted, it’s been a concession to the
nature of the industry and it hasn't interfered with the way the
freeze | aws work, she said.

CHAI R FRENCH renoved his objection to Arendnent 2 and finding no
further objection, he announced that Amendnent 2 is adopt ed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- March 31, 2008



2: 35: 51 PM
CHAI R FRENCH noved Amendnment 3, 25-LS0311\T.5, Bannister, and
obj ected for discussion purposes.

AMENDMENT 3

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO SCS CSHB 65(L&C)

Page 18, |ine 19:
Del ete "debt collection,"”

Page 20, lines 9 - 10:
Del ete "debt collection,"”

IVS. LI DSTER explained that the anmendnent renmoves “debt
collection” as an exception to the prohibitions for requests,
col l ections, and disclosures of a social security nunber.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what the rationale was for renoving
t hat excepti on.

M5. LIDSTER said the exenption for debt collection was overly
br oad.

2:38:59 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked whose ox is being gored.

M5. LIDSTER surmised it’s anyone who is in business and trying
to collect a debt. That exenption was added when fraud
prevention and | aw enforcenment issues were addressed.

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Sniffen to comment on proposed Amendnent
3.

MR. SNI FFEN said DOL has no objection to renoving the exenption.

CHAI R FRENCH renoved his objection to Arendnent 3 and finding no
further objection, he announced that Amendnment 3 is adopt ed.

2:41: 01 PM
CHAIR FRENCH noved Anendnment 4, 25-LS0311\T.6, Bannister, and
obj ected for discussion purposes.

AMENDMENT 4

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 31, 2008



OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO  SCS CSHB 65( L&C)

Page 18, line 13, follow ng "person":
| nsert "or a transaction”

Page 18, line 16, follow ng "person":
Insert "or for a transaction”

Page 18, |ine 29:
Del ete "expressly"”

Page 18, line 31, follow ng "person":
Insert "or for a transaction”

Page 19, line 3, follow ng "person":
I nsert "or for a transaction”

Page 19, |ine 22:
Del ete "expressly"

Page 19, |ine 30:

Delete "the third party is a person”

Insert "the disclosure is to a person or for a
transacti on”

Page 20, line 3:

Delete "the third party is"

Insert "the disclosure is to a person or for a
transaction”

M5. LIDSTER explained that the anmendnent addresses concerns
voi ced by LexisNexis and ChoicePoint Inc. The intention is to
all ow businesses that are regulated by the G ammLeach-Bliley
Fi nanci al Modderni zation Act (G.BA) or the Fair Credit Reporting
Act (FCRA) to conduct regulated transactions wth entities that
are not regulated. The phrase “or for a transaction” was
inserted on pages 18-20 as listed in the above anendnent to
clarify that if the entity isn't regulated, the transaction
would be. Further <concern was that the phrase “expressly
authorized” was too limting. Thus, the term “expressly” was
removed from page 18, line 29 and from page 19, line 22.

M5. LIDSTER characterized it as a fair conpromse to let either

the person or the transaction be regulated by the G.BA or the
FCRA.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- March 31, 2008



2:46:10 PM

CHAIR FRENCH referred to page 18, line 2, paragraph (1), and
asked if there’'s a reason that the word “expressly” wasn't
del eted there as well.

M5. LIDSTER replied it was an oversight; she'd appreciate it if
the commttee would delete that reference as wel|.

CHAI R FRENCH said the commttee would deal with that separately.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked about inserting the phrase “or
transaction” in that | ocation.

CHAI R FRENCH pointed out that the construction of the anmendnent
is to insert the phrase “or transaction” when it refers to the
GLBA or the FCRA, but not in paragraph (1) of Sec.45.48.410,
Sec. 45. 48. 420, and Sec. 45. 48. 430.

M5. LI DSTER agr eed.

CHAIR FRENCH asked the representatives from the affected
industry if they' d seen the anmendnment and cared to conment.

2:48: 02 PM

JON BURTON, Assistant Vice President, State and Governnent
Rel ations, ChoicePoint Inc., said he knows with certitude that
the | anguage that he and others in the industry provided to the
sponsor and this commttee would work for ChoicePoint. He can’t
give an opinion as to whether the |anguage in the proposed
amendnent would alleviate the problem W wll continue to work
wi th the sponsor, he said.

AUDREY ROBI NSON, Manager, State and Governnent Affairs, Reed
El sevier, parent conpany for LexisNexis, stated that she
consul ted outside counsel when she learned that an anmendnment
adding the word “transaction” was contenplated. Those GLBA
experts indicated that the |anguage suggested in the amendnent
is outside the scope of the G.BA statute. LexisNexis and others

in the industry suggested the “or” anmendnent. It appropriately
says that the use or the purpose is regulated and therefore you
fall under the prosecutorial jurisdiction of the FTC.  She

doesn’ t know if the proposed anendnent would work for
Lexi sNexi s.

2:50: 30 PM

JENNI FER  FLYNN, Seni or  Manager, Consuner Data |Industries
Association (CDIA), said CD A represents the consunmer reporting

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 16- March 31, 2008



industry. There hasn’t been tine to contact nenbers to know

whet her or not the anendnment will work, but LexisNexis is a
menber and if it doesn't work for themit won't work for us, she
said. |Industry did offer language it knows would work, she
added.

MURRAY  JOHNSTON, Di rector, State and CGovernment Affairs,
Experian said he appreciates the sponsor’s efforts, but he needs
to have his attorney review the |anguage before he’'s able to
comment on the proposed anendnent.

CHAIR FRENCH asked Ms. Hillebrand if she’s had a chance to
revi ew t he anendnent .

M5. HI LLEBRAND, said she too received the proposed |anguage j ust
t oday. She conti nued:

The language in print — not |ooking at the amendnment -
requires both the person and the purpose to be the one
that is called for in a specific federal |aw The
amendnent would allow it to be the person and the
purpose or the transaction and the purpose. That is a
softening of the bill, but still ties the idea to that
federal law and the [indic.] transaction that’s under
the federal |law. The problem that we had with sinply
sayi ng ‘person or purpose,’ which is what the industry
had initially proposed, is that that would open the
exenption up to businesses and transactions that have
never been contenplated to be covered by that federa
I aw.

Just inmagine... Sears, Maytag or an |ocal auto mechanic
who's asking for your ssn. The purpose of the Gamm
Leach-Bliley Act never intended to apply to those
folks with respect to non credit activities and yet
one of the purposes under G.BA is resolving custoner
di sputes or inquiries. If you take that out of the
financial institution ...trust transaction setting you
get kind of a surprising result. You know your car
nmechani ¢ shouldn’t have to ask you for your ssn if you
have a conpl aint about the quality of your car repair.

Simlarly Gamm Leach-Bliley has a purpose for use by
self-regulatory agencies. That's a known thing in the
financial area, but outside the financial area if it’'s
just a purpose that’'s permtted, that could be the
direct marketing association, which are exactly the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 31, 2008



folks who we mght be worried are using ssns a little
t oo nuch.

And finally, Gamm Leach-Bliley and the Fair Credit
Reporting Act both have a consent exception. And,
again, just putting in the paperwork outside this
natural context could be troubling. And that’s why we
have been very pleased that the sponsor has not gone
to a “or purposes” approach. This | anguage does soften
the bill for industry wthout, we think, decimating
it.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Sniffen to coment.

2:54: 01 PM

MR. SNIFFEN said he agrees wth M. Hllebrand that the
i ndustry-suggested “or” |anguage woul d broaden the scope of the
act beyond what the sponsor intended. He hasn’t had the
opportunity to think through the transaction |anguage in the
proposed anmendnent, but it may work for the industry.

CHAIR FRENCH agreed with M. Hllebrand that the anmendnent
softens the bill, but the |anguage suggested by industry goes
too far toward gutting the bill.

2:55: 34 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to Sec. 45.48.410, paragraph (5), and
questioned whether anyone would be excluded from asking for a
consuner’s social security nunber for the purpose of a business
transacti on.

M5. LIDSTER replied the exceptions were added as inportant
consuner protections and to continue to allow business to work

It probably goes back to who is doing the background check, she
sai d.

CHAIR FRENCH asked, as a landlord, if he would be able to
continue to ask for social security nunbers to do credit checks.

MS. LIDSTER replied there is an exception.

CHAIR FRENCH renoved his objection and finding no further
obj ection, announced that Anendnent 4 is adopted.

CHAIR FRENCH said the bill will be carried over so it wll be
open for nore discussion on that point.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 31, 2008



2:58: 18 PM
CHAIR FRENCH nopved Anendnent 5, 25-LS0311\T.7, Bannister, and
obj ected for discussion purposes.

AMENDMENTS5

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO SCS CSHB 65(L&C)

Page 18, line 2, follow ng "by":
| nsert "a"

Page 18, line 29, follow ng "by":
| nsert "a"

Page 19, line 22, follow ng "by":
I nsert "a"

MS. LIDSTER asked himto wi thdraw the anmendnent because it needs
further clarification.

CHAI R FRENCH r enoved his objection and w t hdrew Anendnent 5.
2:59: 35 PM
CHAIR FRENCH noved Anendnent 6, 25LS0311\T.8, Bannister, and

obj ected for discussion purposes.

AMENDMENT 6

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO SCS CSHB 65(L&C)

Page 10, line 19, followi ng "three":
| nsert "busi ness"

M5. LIDSTER explained that this clarifies that a security freeze
would be lifted within three business days after receiving a
request .

3:00:19 PM
CHAIR FRENCH renoved his objection and finding no further
obj ection, announced that Anendnment 6 is adopted.

CHAIR FRENCH noved Anmendnment 7 and objected for discussion
pur poses.

AMENDMVENT 7

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 31, 2008



Page 18, line 2, following “is”:
Del ete “expressly”

SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI asked to hear from Ms. Hill ebrand.

M5. HILLEBRAND said it’s a conformng change in light of the
policy choices that have been nade.

CHAIR FRENCH renoved his objection and finding no further
obj ection, announced that Anmendnent 7 is adopted.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that he would hold HB 65 until the next
hearing. At that tinme the issue of the second half of the
sentence on page 2, line 19, will be addresses. Also, it wll
provide industry several days to review the changes that have
been made to Sec. 45.48. 410, Sec. 45.48.420 and Sec. 45. 48. 430.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 3:02:21 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 31, 2008



